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STATE OF NEW I’{A;MPSHIRE
| .
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES l\‘/./_

// ~
8/ NH DIVISION OF .
Public Health Services

mproving health, preventing disease, reducing costs for all

Director ;
| May13,2013
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan = ‘
and the Honorable Council ’
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 :
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human:

Serv1ces Division of Public Health Services and the

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into an agreement with the Town of Exeter (Vendor #177386-

B001), 20 Court Street, Exeter, NH 03833, in an amount
health emergency preparedness and substance misuse pr:

not to exceed $302,902.00, to improve regional public
cventlon and related health promotion capacity, to be

effective July 1, 2013 or date of Governor and Council approval whlchever is later, through June 30, 2015.

9H4.58% T=

5.00% GF

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2014 and SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in future operating budgets with authorlty to adjust amounts within the price limitation
and amend the related terms of the contract without furtheir approval from Governor and Executive Council.

!

05-95-90-902510-5171 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS§, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY

PREPAREDNESS P
Fiscal Year Class/Object Clds$ Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 14 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077021 $52,271.00
SFY 15 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077026 $33,800.00
Sub-Total $86,071.00

SFY 14 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077021 $52,271.00
SFY 15 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077026 $33,800.00

' B Sub-Total $86,071.00

m

05-95-49-491510-2988 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVI%ES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES 'BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,

PREVENTION SERVICES
Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Total Amount
SFY 14 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 95846502 $65,380.00
SFY 15 102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 95846502 $65,380.00
2 Sub-Total 130,760.00
|5
Total $302,902.00
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EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used to allow the ”fown of Exeter to align a range of public health and
substance misuse prevention and related health promotlon activities. The Town of Exeter will be one of 13
agencies statewide to host a Regional Public Health Netwo rk which is the organizational structure through which
these activities are implemented. Eacp Public Health Network site serves a defined Public Health Region, with

every municipality in the state assigned to a region. !

‘ i
This agreement aligns programs and services w1th1n the Department and this contracted partner to
increase the effectiveness of services being provided wh11e reducing the administrative burden and, where
feasible, costs for both the Depaﬂmedt and this partner. lT o that end, this agreement provides a mechanism for
other funds to be directed to Regional Public Health Networks to continue building coordinated regional systems
for the delivery of other public health and substance Imsuse and health promotion services as funding becomes

available. -

This agreement will build reéional capacity in thrgee broad areas: a Regional Public Health Advisory
Committee; Regional Public Health| Preparedness; and Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health
Promotion services. The Regional Public Health 'Advis'ory Committee will engage senior-level leaders from
throughout this region to serve in an advisory capacity over the services funded through this agreement. Over
time, the Division of Public Health Services and the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services expect that the
Regional Public Health Advisory Committee will expand this function to other public health and substance
misuse prevention and related health promotion services funded by the Department. The long-term goal is for the
Regional Public Health Advisory Committee to set reg10na1 priorities that are data-driven, evidence-based,
responsive to the needs of the region, and to serve in th1s advisory role over all public health and substance
misuse and related health promotion activities occurring 1n the region.

The Town of Exeter will also lead a coordmated‘ effort with regional public health, health care and
emergency management partners to develop and exercise reglonal public health emergency response plans to
improve the region’s ability to respond to public health emergencres The Town of Exeter will also coordinate a
Medical Reserve Corps unit made up |of local Volunteers;vgho work in emergency medical clinics and shelters.
These regional activities are integral to the State’s capacit}} tfo respond to public health emergencies.

The effectiveness of a regional response structure for public health emergencies was demonstrated during
the HIN1 pandemic when the Regional Public Health Networks statewide offered 533 clinics that vaccinated
more than 46,000 individuals. Also, during 2011 and 2012 a number of Medical Reserve Corps units statewide
provided basic medical support in emergency shelters durlng tropical storm Irene and “super storm” Sandy.

The Town of Exeter will also coordinate substance misuse prevention and related health promotion
activities with the primary goal of implementing the three-year regional strategic plan that was developed and
completed in June 2012. This strategic plan uses a public health approach that includes Strategic Prevention
Framework Model key milestones and products for the ev1dence-based programs, practices and policies that will
be implemented over the course of the agreement. These efforts must strategically target all levels of society;
seek to influence personal behaviors, family systems and the environment in which individuals “live, work, learn
and play. “ |

According to the 2011 National Survey on Drug Use and Health, New Hampshire ranks third in the
nation for youth alcohol use (17.04% of 12 to 17 year olds reporting drinking in the past month), third in the
nation for alcohol use among young adults (73.22% of 18 to 25 year olds reporting drinking in the past month)
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and sixth in the nation for alcohol use among adults (64.8 9% of those 26 and older reporting drinking in the past
month). In New Hampshire, the rate of alcohol use and binge drinking (having five or more drinks within a
couple of hours) among 12 to 20 year olds is significantly .Jigher than the national average.

New Hampshire also ranks high for marijuana use across a wide range of age categories compared to the
rest of the nation. According to the 2011 National Survey on Drug Use and Health, the percentage of young
people between the ages of 12 and 17 who report marljuana use in the past month is higher in comparison to all
of the other U.S. states and territories. Regular marijuana use (at least once in the past 30 days) is reported by
11.35% of 12-17 year olds. The prevalence of marijuana use among 18 to 25 year olds is fifth in the nation, with
27.03% reporting marijuana use in the past month. The rate of regular marijuana use among adults 26 and older

. 18 5.42%, slightly above the U.S. rate of 4.8%. L

P

Finally, prescription drug misuse is at epidemic prbfhortions in New Hampshire where pain reliever abuse
among young adults is the tenth highest in the nation (12. 31"% of 18 to 25 year olds reported non-medical use of
pain relievers in the past year). Perhaps the most telhng 1ndlcator of New Hampshire’s epidemic is the steady
increase in total drug-related deaths since 2000, with the maj ority of the increase attributable to prescription drug
overdose. The number of drug-related overdose deaths in 'the state increased substantially between 2002 and
2010, more than doubling from 80 deaths to 174 over the elght-year period. Prescription opioids are the most
prevalent drug of abuse leading to death. ;

Should Governor and Executive Council not authonze this Request, there will be a reduced ability to
quickly activate large-scale vaccination clinics and comnfxumty—based medical clinics; support individuals with
medical needs in emergency shelters; and coordinate overall pubhc health response activities in this region. With
respect to substance misuse prevention and related health \promotion, the regional prevention system that has
been addressing these issues would dissolve, causing a further decline of already limited prevention services as
this agreement provides for the continuation, coordlnatlon and further development of community based
prevention services. !

The Town of Exeter was selected for this prO_]CCt through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ web site from January 15, 2013 through
March 4, 2013. In addition, a bidder’s conference was held on January 24 that was attended by more than 80
individuals.

Fifteen Letters of Intent were submitted in response'to this statewide competitive bid. Fifteen proposals
were received, with the Town of Exeter being the sole b1d to provide these services in this region. This bid was
reviewed by two Department of Health and Human Serwces reviewers who have more than 30 years experience
in program administration, emergency planning and substance misuse prevention. The scoring criteria focused
on the bidder’s capacity to perform the scope of services and alignment of the budget with the required services.
The recommendation that this vendor be selected was based on a satisfactory score and agreement among
reviewers that the bidder had significant experience and ! \well- qualified staff. The bid-scoring summary is
attached. !

|
i
1

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, the Department of Health and Human
Services in its sole discretion may decide to offer a two (2) year extension of this competitively procured
agreement, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of serv1ces available funding, agreement of the parties and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Emergency preparedness services were contracted: previously with this agency in SFY 2012 in the
amount of $87,500.00. This represents decrease of $1,429.00 due a new funding formula that included both a
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base award plus a population-based allocation. This is the initial agreement with this Contractor for substance

misuse prevention and related health promotion services. | |

The following performance measures will be usedéto measure the effectiveness of the agreement.

Regional Public Health Advisory Committee

Representation of at least 70% of the 11 commumty sectors identified in the CDC Capabilities
Standards that participate in the Regional Publlc Health Advisory Committee.

Representation of 65% of the six community sectors identified in the Governor’s Commission on
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Interventlon and Treatment’s plan that participate in the
Regional Public Health Advisory Committee. E i

Representation of at least 70% of the 13 healthcare sector partners identified by the Division of
Public Health Services that participate in-a reglonal healthcare coalition.

Documented organizational structure for the Reglonal Public Health Advisory Committee (e.g. vision
or mission statements, organizational charts, by—laws MOUEs, etc.).

Establish and increase over time, regional connect1v1ty among stakeholders and improved trust
among partners via the annual PARTNER Survey

Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Promotion

Percentage of increase of evidence-based programs practices and policies adopted by sector.

Increase in the amount of funds and resources leveraged in the implementation of prevention
strategies.

Number and increase in the diversity of Center for Substance Abuse Prevention categories
implemented across Institute of Medicine class1ﬁcat10ns as outlined in the federal Block Grant
Requirements. P

Number of persons served or reached by Instltute of Medicine classification.

Number of key products produced and mllestones reached as outline in and reported annually in the
Regional Network Annual Report. 1

Short-term and intermediate outcomes measured and achieved as outlined in the Regional Prevention
System’s Logic Model. 1 ?

Long-term outcomes measured and achieved as apphcable to the region’s three-year strategic plan.

Regional Public Health Preparedness !

Score assigned to the region’s capacity to dlspense medications to the population, based on the
Center for Disease Control’s Local Technical Ass1stance Review.

Score assigned to the region’s capacity to actlvate a community-based med1ca1 surge system during
emergencies based on the Division of Public Health Services’ Regional Annex Technical Assistance
Review. L

Number of Medical Reserve Corps volunteers who are deemed eligible to respond to an emergency.
Percent of requests for deployment during emergenc1es met by Medical Reserve Corps units.

Area served: Brentwood, East Kingston, Epping, Exeter Fremont, Greenland, Hampton, Hampton Falls,
Kensington, Kingston, New Castle, Newfields, Newmgton Newmarket, Newton, North Hampton, Nott1ngham,
Portsmouth, Raymond, Rye, Seabrook, South Hampton and Stratham

i ]

Source of Funds is 94.98% Federal Funds from the ‘U S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admlmstratron and 5.02% General Funds.

E {
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no lonéer available, General Funds will not be requested to

support this program.

JTM/NLR/NT/is

Respectfully submitted,
José Thier Montero, MD
Director

L Nancy L. Rollins
!¢ Associate Commissioner

g - /
, Approvedfb“"y: Q\ M

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

]
|

H

i

The Department of Health and Human Services’;Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

3
§ubject Regional Public Health Network Services
AGREEMEN T
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PR@VISION S
1. IDENTIFICATION, [

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

}1.2 State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord NH 03301-6504

1.3  Contractor Name

Town of Exeter

1 4 Contractor Address
20]Court Street
Exeter NH 03833

Ll

1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number 05-95-90-902510-5171-102- X '
(603) 418-6404 500731 J'uﬂe 30, 2015 $302,902.00
05-95-49-491510-2988-102- | | | |
500734 Lr

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

i1'0 State Agency Telephone Number
I 5

603-271-4501
i

1 -

112  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Dforiiald Clement, Chairman, Board of Selectmen
g

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH , County of

Onﬂﬂ/ﬁ h
pers&Q.

1.

,nun
|' ':

"

i

the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
,y} ,swned in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he =xecuted this document in the capacity indicated in block
Z

of Notary or Justice of the Peace

I ARY PUBRS
K

{
1
f
o
Do

1.14  State Agency Signature

oa

L15

i
:

Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Llsa L Bujno, Bureau Chief

By:

1.16  Approval by the N.H. De‘partment of Administration, D1v1s:1qn of Personnel (if applicable)
[

[
L
I8

Difeétor On:

M b M2t e
By: anae P plevick, Atlane.,

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Executlon)

On: 1 27 /Mﬂ-'g 29 /3

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By:

On: ;

;ﬁ
|

%
E
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
‘payment until-such finds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually

made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
i 1.8.

i
b
[
Pt
i
|
i
!

| | 6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
| | AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

{ "OPPORTUNITY.
i 16.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the

‘Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities .
‘which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
imcludmg, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, rehglon creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afﬁrmatlve action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
Umted States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
prov1srons of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulatrons of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertammg compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

\

7. PERSONNEL,

:7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all

personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor

v&:"arrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
«qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

}2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
?thls Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
§Completlon Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporatlon with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
oﬁany dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contractmg Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

i
i
!

i
i
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
€ontractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two

- (2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this

" Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

- 9.2 All data and any property which has been received from

. the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose

under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and

. shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon

' termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA

chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires

. prior written approval of the State.

. 10, TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the

. Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Page 3 of 4}

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report

- described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

| 11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

| the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all

respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
‘an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its

. | officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
© 'bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation

or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

112. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
! \The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

| |interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
! ithe N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the

Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the

prior written consent of the State.

; 13 INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
11ab111t1es or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,

i based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be

claxmed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the

- i Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothlng herein

i ! contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

’ overeign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall

! surv1ve the termination of this Agreement.

2 14 INSURANCE.

14 1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
malntaln in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
a551gnee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
{msurance

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
tof not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
loccurrence; and

114.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
propercy subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14 2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
1Ifsurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshlre

14 3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
1dent1ﬁed in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
1dent1ﬁed in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
ms‘urance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifieen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
a’ttlflched and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

i ' Contractor Initials:
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

; 21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
 for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
'shall in no way be held to explain, modlfy amplify or aid in

‘, the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
ithis Agreement.

| 22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth

in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by

. ireference.

1123. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of

this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to

be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

¢ provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect

24 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may

be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
: be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
! understandmg between the parties, and supersedes all prior

Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

i X
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i
NH Department of Healt!h’;::and Human Services

Exhlblt A

Scope of Servnces
Regional Public Health N etwork Services

)

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or Date of G&(; approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2015 j 3
CONTRACTOR NAME: Town of Exeter |

70 Court Street
ADDRESS: Exeter, NH 03833
Fire Chief: Brian Comeau i |
i

TELEPHONE: (603) 418-6404 |

il

[
ok

i
1
i
1

The Contractor shall:

The contractor, as a recipient of federal and state funds will \implement recommendations from the NH Division
of Public Health Service’s (DPHS) report Creating a Regional Public Heaith System: Results of an Assessment to
Inform the Planning Process to strengthen capacity among pubhc health system partners to deliver essential public
health services in a coordinated and effective manner by establishing a Regional Public Health Advisory
Committee. fl

[
The contractor will implement the 2012 Regional Strategic PIan for Prevention pertaining to communities in their
region addressing substance misuse prevention and related lhealth promotion as it aligns with the existing three-
year outcome-based strategic prevention plan completed June 2012 located on:
http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas/prevention.htm. : «

|

The contractor will develop regional public health emergency response capabilities in accordance with the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC’s) Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for
State and Local Planning (Capabilities Standards) and as approprlate to the region.

The contractor in selected regions will also implement m1t1at1ves that respond to other public health needs as
identified in this Exhibit A. {

|
All contractors will ensure the administrative and fiscal capecny to accept and expend funds provided by the
DPHS and the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS) for substance misuse prevention and related health

promotion and other public health services as such funding may become available.

To achieve these outcomes, the contractor will conduct the foH?wmg activities:

. i

1. Regional Public Health Advisory Committee 5

Develop and/or maintain a Regional Public Health Advisory Commlttee comprised of representatives from the
community sectors identified in Table 1 of the RFP. At a minimum, this entity shall provide an advisory role to
the contractor and, as appropriate, subcontractors to assure the delivery of the services funded through this
agreement. {

i
1
{
i

The Regional Public Health Advisory Committee should strive to ensure its membership is inclusive of all local
agencies that provide public health services beyond those funded under this agreement. The purpose is to

facilitate improvements in the delivery of the 10 Essential Pu%bhc Health Services including prepared;ess-related

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials:
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services and continue implementation of the Strategicg Prevention Framework (SPF) and substance misuse
prevention and related health promotion as approprlate;to the region. This is accomplished by establishing
regional public health priorities that are based on assessments of community health; advocating for the
implementation of programs, practices and policies that are evidence-based to meet improved health outcomes;
and advance the coordination of services among partners. | |

( !
A. Membership ! )
At a minimum, the following entities within the region bemg served shall be granted full membership rights on
the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee. ,
Each municipal and county government
Each community hospital
Each School Administrative Unit (SAU)
Each DPHS-designated community health center ;
Each NH Department of Health and Human Services (IDHHS) designated community mental health center
The contractor
At least one representative from each of the followmg community sectors shall also be granted full
membership rlghts business, cultural and faith-based organlzatrons social services, housing and sheltering,
media, and senior services. 5 i
8. Representatives from other sectors or individual ent1t1es should be included as determined by the Regional

Public Health Advisory Committee. |

o
c 0
b

1
i
3
|
i
{

N YR W

Responsibilities

Perform an advisory function to include: ‘

1. Collaborate with the contractor to establish annual pr10r1t1es to strengthen the capabrhtles within the region to
prepare for and respond to public health emergencies and 1mplement substance misuse prevention and related
health promotion activities. }

1.1. Upon contracting, recruit and convene members rto determine a name for the region that is based on
geography (ex. Seacoast, North Country) by September 30.

2. -Collaborate with regional partners to collect, analyze and disseminate data about the health of the region.

2.1. Disseminate the 2012 NH State and Regional Health Profiles, the Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS)
and Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance Survey! (BRFSS) reports, and the forthcoming State Public
Health Improvement Plan to public health system partners in the region in order to inform partners of
the health status of the region. Disseminate other reports (ex. Weekly Early Event Detection Report)
issued by DHHS as appropriate.

2.2, Participate in local community health assessments prioritizing the Community Benefits Assessment
conducted by hospitals as required under RSA 7:32.|

2.3. Participate in regional, county and local health needs assessments convened by other agencies.

2.4, Participate in community health improvement plannrng processes being conducted by other agencies.

3. Liaison with municipal and county government leaders to provide awareness of and, as possible, participation
in the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee and its role to coordinate activities regionally.

4. Designate representatives to other local or regional 1n1t1at1ves that address emergency preparedness and
response, substance misuse prevention and related health promotron and other public health services.

5. Develop and maintain policies and procedures related to the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee that
include:
5.1. Organizational structure i
5.2. Membership
5.3. Leadership roles and structure j
5.4. Committee roles and responsibilities |
5.5. Decision-making process
5.6. Subcommittees or workgroups
5.7. Documentation and record-keeping

Standard Exhibits A ~J Contractor Initials: @
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5.8. Process for reviewing and revising the policies and procedures

Complete the PARTNER survey during the fourth quarter of SFY 2014.

7. The chair of the Regional Public Health Advisory Commrctee or their designee should be present at site visits
conducted by the NH DPHS and BDAS and, to the -extent possible, be available for other meetings as
requested. |

[

&

2. Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Promotion

iy
i

a. Ensure oversight to carry out the reglonal three-year strategic plan (available at:
http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas/prevention.htm) and coordination of the SPF and other processes as
described in this RFP and mapped out within ’the BDAS Regional Network System Logic Model
(Attachment 8):

1. Maintain and/or hire a full-time-equivalent coordlnator to manage the project with one person serving
as the primary point of contact and management ;of the scope of work.

a. The Prevention Coordinator(s) is requlred to be a Certified Prevention Specialist (CPS) or
pending certification within one year of, start of contract and a graduate from a four year
university. Ly

2. Provide or facilitate appropriate professional office space, meeting space, and access to office
equipment to conduct the business of the Regxonal Public Health Network (RPHN).

3. Ensure proper and regular supervision to the Coordmator(s) in meeting the deliverables of this
confract.

4. Ensure the continuance of a committee to serve as the content experts for Substance Misuse
Prevention and Related Health Promotion and assomated consequences for the region that is under the
guidance of and informs the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee.

a. The expert committee shall consist of the ! srx sectors representative of the region with a shared
focus on prevention misuse of substances and associated consequences. The committee will
inform and guide the regional efforts to ensure priorities and programs are data-driven, evidence-
based, and culturally appropriate to the region to achieve outcomes.

b. Ensure the expert committee provides unblased input into regional activities and development,
guidance in the implementation of the three-year strategic plan and other contract deliverables
and serves as the liaison to the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee.

c. Recruit and maintain various members from the six core sectors to conduct the steps of the SPF in
reaching key milestones and producing key products as outline in Attachment 2.

d. Submit any and all revised regional network‘ -strategic plans as required to BDAS that are data-
driven and endorsed by regional members and the expert committee/workgroup.

e. Promote and communicate regional outcomes, goals, obJectwes, activities and successes through
media and other community information channels to the regions’ coalitions, local drug free
community grantees, prevention provider agencres, and other prevention entities as appropriate.

f. Cooperate with and coordinate all evaluatlon efforts as required by BDAS conducted by the
Center for Excellence, (e.g. PARTNER Survey, annual Regional Network Evaluation, and other
surveys as directed by BDAS). !

g. Maintain effective training and on-going communlcatlon within the coalition, expert committee,
broader membership, six core sectors, and all subcommlttees

h. Attend all State required trainings, workshops,?land bi-monthly meetings.

i. Work with BDAS and the Bureau of Liquor Enforcement to institute Comprehensive Synar Plan
activities (merchant and community educatlon efforts, youth involvement, policy and advocacy
efforts, and other activities). !

Assist with other State activities as needed. |

Ongoing quality improvement is required as demonstrated by attendance and participation with

Center for Excellence technical assistance events and learning collaborative(s).

1. Conduct 10 Appreciative Inquires annually and utilize Community-Based Participatory Research
approach in outreach efforts as stated in RFP. |
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m. Meet the requirements of the National Outcomes as outlined in Attachment 7.

Meet the required outcomes measures ast outlined in BDAS Regional Network System Logic
Model (Attachment 8). L

0. Provide hosting and/or collaborative efforts for one full time Volunteers in Service to America

(VISTA) volunteer provided by Communlty Antl-Drug Coalitions of America (CADCA) at

minimum for one-year to work within and across regions to support military personnel and their

families in support of the goals and obJectlves of the VetCorps-VISTA Project:

e Increase the number of veterans and military families (VMF) receiving services and
assistance by establishing partnershlps and developing collaborations with communities to
help create a network and safety net of support similar to that of military bases;

e Increase the capamty of commumty mstltutlons and civic and volunteer organizations to
assist local VMFs in several areas 1) Enhancmg opportumtles for healthy futures for VMF
focusing on access to health care and health care services, with an emphasis on substance
abuse prevention, treatment and outreach 2) Facilitating the provision of and access to social,
mental and physical health services to VMF 3) Enhancing economic opportunities for VMF
(focusmg on housing and employment) and 4) Increasing the number of veterans engaged in
service opportunities.

B

3. Regional Public Health Preparedness

1

A. Regional Public Health Emergency Planning
The goal of these activities is to provide leadership and coordlnatlon to improve the readiness of regional, county,
and local partners to mount an effective response to public health emergencies and threats. This will be achieved
by conducting a broad range of specific public health preparedness activities to make progress toward meeting the
national standards described in the Capabilities Standardsi All activities shall build on current efforts and
accomplishments within each region. All revisions to the reglonal preparedness annex and appendices, as well as
exercises conducted under this agreement will prioritize thé building and integration of the resource elements
described in the Capabilities Standards. ! ;;

1. In collaboration with the Regional Public Health Adv1sory Committee described in that section of this

document provide leadership to further develop, exermse and update the current Regional Public Health

Emergency Annex (RPHEA) and related appendices (Attachment 11). The RPHEA is intended to serve as an

annex or addendum to mun1c1pal emergency operatlons plans to activate a regional response to large-scale

public health emergencles The annex describes cr1t1cal operational functions and what entities are
responsible for carrying them out. The regional annex §clearly describe the policies, processes, roles, and
responsibilities that municipalities and partner agencies: carry out before, during, and after any public health
emergency. For more information about the format and stmcture of emergency plans go to:
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/about/divisions/npd/CPG_101: V2.pdf.

1.1 Participate in an annual Regional Annex Technlcal A551stance Review (RATAR) developed by the NH
DPHS. The RATAR outlines planning elements to be assessed for evidence of the Public Health
Regions’ (PHRs) overall readiness to mount an effectlve response to a public health emergency or
threat. Revise and update the RPHEA, related appendlces and attachments based on the findings from
the RATAR.

1.2 Participate in an annual Local Technical AssrstancelRewew (LTAR) as required by the CDC Division
of Strategic National Stockpile (DSNS). The LTAR outlines planning elements specific to managing,
distributing and dispensing Strategic National Stockplle (SNS) materiel received from the CDC during
a public health emergency. Revise and update the RPHEA, related appendices and attachments based
on the findings from the LTAR. ;

1.3 Develop new incident-specific appendices based on priorities identified by the NH DPHS. The DPHS
will provide planning templates and guidance for use by the contractor.

i
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1.4 Submit the RPHEA and all related appendrces and attachments to the NH DPHS by June 30 of each
year. Submission shall be in the form of a s1ngle hard copy and by posting all materials on E-Studio.
E-Studio is a web-based document sharing systenl maintained by the DPHS.

1.5 Disseminate the RPHEA and related materials ;to planning and response partners including municipal
officials from each municipality in the region. ‘D1ssem1nat10n may be through hard copy or electronic
means.

2. Collaborate with hospitals receiving funds under the U S. DHHS’ Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP)
cooperative agreement to strengthen and maintain a healthcare coalition in accordance with the “Healthcare
Preparedness Capabilities-National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness.” Healthcare coalitions
consist of a collaborative network of healthcare organlzatrons and their respective public and private sector
response partners with(in) the region. Health(care) Coalitions serve as a multi- -agency coordinating group that
assists local Emergency Management and Emergendy Support Function (ESF) #8 with preparedness
response, recovery and mitigation activities related to healthcare organization disaster operations.'

3. Collaborate with municipal emergency management dlrectors to integrate the assets and capabilities included
in the RPHEA into municipal and regional shelter plans

4, Pursue Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) w1th governmental public health, and health care entities
that describe the respective roles and responsibilities of the parties in the planning and response to a public
health emergency.

5. Implement at least one priority intervention identified durlng the HVA conducted in SFY 13.

\«

B. Regional Public Health Emergency Response Readmess

1. Engage with commumty organ1zat10ns to foster connectlons that assure public health, medical and
behavioral health services in the region before, durrng and after an incident.

1.1. Collaborate with community organizations to 1mprove the capacity within the region to deliver the
Ten Essential Public Health Services (Attachment 3.

2. Improve the capacity and capability within the reg1on to respond to emergencies when requested by the

‘NH DHHS or local governments. |

2.1. Coordinate the procurement, rotation and storage of supplies necessary for the activation of
Alternate Care Sites (ACS), Ne1ghborhood Emergency Help Centers (NEHCs) and Points of
Dispensing (POD) and support public health health care and behavioral health services in
emergency shelters located within the region. ® |

2.2. Develop and execute MOUs with agencies to store inventory, and rotate these supplies.

2.3. Enter and maintain data about the region’s response supplies in the Inventory Resources
Management System (IRMS) administered by the NH DHHS Emergency Services Unit (ESU) in
order to track and manage medical and adrnlnlstratlve supplies owned by the contractor. Each
agency funded under this agreement will be granted administrative access rights to this web-based
system in order to complete this activity. t

2.4. Disseminate information about, and link appropnate public health and health care professionals
with, the NHResponds to allow for the timely ;actlvatlon of volunteers during emergency events.
For more information about NHResponds go to: | . (https://www .nhresponds.org/nhhome.aspx).

2.5. Disseminate information about the NH Health Alert Network (HAN) and refer appropriate
individuals interested in enrolling to the DPHS HAN coordinator. The HAN is an alerting and
notification system administered by the NH DPHS Receive, and act on as necessary, HAN notices
from the DPHS to ensure local partners remain aware of recommendations and guidance issued by
the DPHS. *

2.6. Based on a determination made by regional partners administer a regional HAN in accordance with
DPHS policies, procedures, and requirements. |

2.7. Improve capacity to receive and expend funds assoclated with public health emergency response in
a timely manner. Assess the agency’s financial ”personnel and procurement/contract management

! Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities-National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness. U.S. Department ealth
and Human Services, January 2012.

i
i
£
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2.8.

policies and procedures and improve procedures to reduce the time needed to receive and use
federal and state funds during emergencies.

Sponsor and organize the logistics for at least two trainings/in-services for regional partners.
Collaborate with the DHHS, DPHS, the NH Institute of Public Health Practice, the Community
Health Institute in Bow, NH, the Preparedness Emergency Response Learning Center at Harvard
University and other training providers to 1mp1ement these training programs. Enter information
about training programs and individuals tramed into a learning management system administered
by NH DPHS to track training programs.

3. In coordination with the DHHS, maintain a Medtcal Reserve Corps (MRC) within the region or in
cooperation with other regions according to gu1dance from the federal MRC program and the DHHS.

3.1

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

3.5

C. Public Health Emergency Drills and Exercises

Identify current members or enlist new members to serve in a leadership capacity to further develop
the capability, capacity and programs of the reiglonal MRC.

Conduct outreach to health care entities to recrult health care workers with the skills, licensure and
credentialing needed to fill positions descrlbed in the RPHEA, related appendices, and to support
the school-based immunization clinics descnbed in this Exhibit. Conduct outreach in other venues
to recruit non-clinical volunteers. . |

Enter and maintain data about MRC members in a module within the NHResponds system
administered by the NH DHHS to ensure the capability to notify, activate, and track members
during routine public health or emergency events. Utilize this system to activate members and
track deployments. Each agency funded under\ this agreement will be granted administrative access
rights to this web-based system in order to complete this activity.

Enter information about training programs : and individuals trained into a learning management
system administered by NH DHHS to track tra1n1ng programs completed by MRC members.
Conduct training programs that allow members to meet core competency requirements established
by the NH MRC Advisory Committee and the NH DHHS. Provide at least one opportunity per
year for members to take each of the on- Slte courses required to meet the core competency
requirements. These courses may be offered 1n4ithe region or an adjoining region when feasible.

h
1
|

1. Plan and execute drills and exercises in accordance w1th the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation
Program (HSEEP). %‘

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Maintain a three-year Training and Exercise Plan (TEP) that, at a ‘minimum, includes all drills and
exercises as required under the SNS program. |
Coordinate partlc1patlon of regional partners in a HSEEP compliant functional exercise regarding
the section in the regional annex to provide low-ﬂow oxygen support to patients in an ACS. The
exercise will be offered through a vendor contracted by the DPHS.
Based on the mutual agreement of all partles and as funding allows, participate in drills and
exercises conducted by the NH DPHS, NH DHHS ESU, and NH Homeland Security and
Emergency Management (HSEM). :
Collaborate with local emergency management directors, hospitals, and public health system
partners to seek funding to support other workshops drills and exercises that evaluate the
Capabilities Standards based on priorities established by regional partners.
To the extent possible, participate in workshops drills and exercises as requested by local
emergency management directors or other pubhc ‘health partners.

]

i
i
i
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4. Performance Measures

Regional Public Health Advisory Committee

Representation of at least 70% of the 11 communit§ sectors identified in the CDC Capabilities Standards
that participate in the Regional Public Health Adv1sory Committee.

Representat1on of 65% of the 6 community sectors identified in the Governor’s Commission plan that
participate in the Regional Public Health Advisory Commlttee

Representation of at least 70% of the 13 healthcare sector partners identified by the DPHS that participate
in the regional healthcare coalition. i

Documented organizational structure for the Reglonal Public Health Advisory Committee (e.g. vision or
mission statements, organizational charts, MOUs, mmutes, etc.).

Establish and increase over time regional connectmty among stakeholders and improved trust among
partners via the annual PARTNER Survey.

Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Proémotion

Outcome and evaluation measure instruments will be, admlmstered in cooperation with the NH Center for
Excellence and Monthly submission of process evaluation data via the web-based performance monitoring
system (P-WITs) and other surveys and reports as required by BDAS (e.g. PARTNER survey, Regional
Network Evaluation, Regional Network Annual Report). %i

Percentage of increase of evidence-based programs, practlces and policies adopted by sector as recorded
in P-WITS.

Increase in the amount of funds and resources leveraged in the implementation of prevention strategies as
recorded in P-WITS.

Number and increase in the diversity of Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP) categories
implemented across Institute of Medicine (IOM) classifications as outlined in the Block Grant
Requirements (Attachment 7) as recorded in P-WITS.!

Number of persons served or reached by IOM cla351ﬁcatlon as recorded in P-WITS.

Number of key products produced and milestones reached as outlined in Attachment 2 and reported
annually in the Regional Network Annual Report and as recorded in P-WITS.

Short-term and intermediate outcomes measured and :achleved as outlined in the Regional System Logic
Model (Attachment 8). r

a) Long-term outcomes measured and achieved as apphcable to the region’s 3-year strategic plan.

1
i

Regional Public Health Preparedness ,

5. Training and Technical Assistance Requirements

Score assigned to the region’s capacity to drspense medrcatlons to the population based on the CDC
LTAR. F

Score a551gned to the region’s capacity to activate a community-based medical surge system during
emergencies based on the DPHS’ RATAR. |

Number of MRC volunteers who are deemed eligible to respond to an emergency.

Percent of requests for deployment during emergenc1esﬁmet by MRC units.

i
]
!

The contractor will participate in training and technical a551stance programs offered to agencies receiving funds
under this agreement. L
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i Regional Public Health Preparedness

1. Participate in bi-monthly Preparedness Coordinator tec::lfnical assistance meetings.
Develop and implement a technical assistance plan for the region, in collaboration with the agency that is
under contract with the NH DPHS to provide that technlcal assistance.

3. Complete the training standards recommended for Preparedness Coordinators (See Attachment 12).

4. Attend the annual Statewide Preparedness Conferences 1n June 2014 and 2015.

Medical Reserve Corps L

|

1. Participate in the development of a statewide technical assistance plan for MRC units.
2. Participate in monthly MRC unit coordinator meetings. |

3. Attend the annual Statewide MRC Leadership Conference

Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Promotmn
1. On going quality improvement is required as demonstrated by attendance and participation with Center for
Excellence on or off site technical assistance and learning collaborative(s).

6.  Administration and Management

A. All Services

1. Workplan
Monitor progress on the final workplan approved by the DHHS prior to the initiation of the contract.
There must be a separate section for each of the following:

Regional Public Health Advisory Committee |

Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Promotlon

Regional Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Training and Technical Assistance ‘ 1

i

Administration and Management i

o ae T

2. Reporting, Contract Monitoring and Performance hvaluation Activities

i
[
s

All Services

1. Participate in an annual or semi-annual site visit w1th DHHS, DPHS and BDAS staff. Site visits will
include: 1‘
1.1 A review of the progress made toward rneetmg the deliverables and requirements described in this
Exhibit A based on an evaluation plan that 1ncludes performance measures.
1.2 Subcontractors must attend all site visits as requested by DHHS.
1.3 A financial audit in accordance with state and federal requirements.
2. Maintain the capability to accept and expend funds to support funded services.
2.1 Submit monthly invoices within 20 workmg days after the end of each calendar month in
accordance with the terms described in Exhibit B paragraph 3, on forms provided by the DHHS.
2.2. Assess agency policies and procedures to determme areas to improve the ability to expedite the
acceptance and expendlture of funds during pubhc health emergencies.
2.3. Assess the agency’s capacity to apply for state and federal reimbursement for costs incurred during
declared emergencies. I
3. Ensure the capacity to accept and expend new state or federal funds durlng the contract period for public
health and substance misuse prevention and related health promotion services.

Standard Exhibits A ~ J | Contractor Initials:
Page 8 of 32 Dat: 5/ ,,2? /3



Public Health Preparedness

4. Submit for approval all educational materials developed with these funds. Such materials must be

submitted prior to printing or dissemination by other means. Acknowledgement of the funding source

shall be in compliance with the terms described in Exhibit C, paragraph 14.

Provide other programmatic updates as requested by the DHHS.

6. Engage the Regional Public Health Advisory Committee to provide input about how the contractor can
meet its overall obligations and responsibilities under this Scope of Services.

6.1. Provide the Regional Public Health Advrsory Committee with information about public health and
substance misuse prevention and related health promotion issues in the state and region that may
impact the health and wellness of the pubhc and the ability of communities to respond to and
recover from emergencies.

6.2 Facilitate awareness of the Regional Pub]rc Health Advisory Committee about the agency’s
performance under this Scope of Services by] allowing a representative from the Regional Public
Health Advisory Committee to participate in'site visits and other meetings with the NH DHHS
related to the activities being conducted under thls agreement,

Iv

N

3. Subcontractors

3.1. If any services required by this Exhibit are prov1ded in whole or in part, by a subcontracted agency or
provider, the DHHS must be notified in wntmg and approve the subcontractual agreement, prior to

initiation of the subcontract.
3.2. In addition, the original contractor will remain 11ab1e for all requirements included in this Exhibit and

carried out by subcontractors.

4. Transfer of assets

4.1  Upon notification by the DHHS and within 30 days of the start of the contract, coordinate with the
DHHS the transfer of any assets purchased by another entity under a previous contract.

1.

!

Submit quarterly progress reports based on performanoeé using reporting tools developed by the DPHS. A
single report shall be submitted to the DPHS® Community Health Development Section that describes
activities under each section of this Exhibit that the contractor is funded to provide. The Section will be
responsible to distribute the report to the appropriate contract managers in other DPHS programs.

Complete membership assessments to meet CDC and Assrstant Secretary for Preparedness and Response
(ASPR) requirements. gf

i

Substance Misuse Prevention and Related Health Promotion

e

Standard Exhibits A—J Contractor Initials:

Pk
£

Complete monthly data entry in the BDAS P-WITS system that aligns and supports the regional substance
misuse prevention and related health promotion plan. !
1.1. Contractor will submit the following to the State: }l
1.1.1. Submit updated or revised strategic plans for approval prior to implementation.
1.1.2. Submit annual report to BDAS due June; 25 2014 and 2015 (template will be provided by
BDAS).
1.1.3.  Cooperate and coordinate all evaluation efforts conducted by the Center for Excellence, (e.g.
PARTNER Survey, annual environmental measure, and other surveys as directed by BDAS).
1.1.4. Provide additional information as a required by BDAS.

Page 9 of 32 Date: (5
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Fiscal Agent : @

i

1. As requested by regional partners, serve as a fiscal agent for federal, state or other funds to provide public

health services within the PHR. Services provided usmg these funds may be implemented by the contractor
or other partnering entities.

‘ i

I understand and agree to this scope of services to be completed in the contract period. In the event our agency is

having trouble fulfilling this contract we will contact the 1approprlate DHHS office immediately for additional
guidance.

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials

Page 10 of 32 Date: ﬁzz%é 3



NH Department of Healtlfl ;jnd Human Services

Exhibit
i

EB

Purchase of-Serv1ces
Contract P:rice

Regional Public Healtl)

Yetvvork Services

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C alg)proval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015
. P

CONTRACTOR NAME: Town of Exeter| |
70 Court Street; |

ADDRESS: Exeter, NH 03833

Fire Chief: Brian Comeau | |
TELEPHONE: (603) 418-6404 § :

i
3

Vendor #177386-B001 | Job #90077021 Appro@tion #05-95-90-902510-5171-102-500731

Job #90077026 | Appropriation #05-95-90-902510-5171-102-500731

Job #95846502 Approprifat:ion #05-95-49-491510-2988-102-500734

i

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contract 3r?ffor cost and expenses incurred in the performance of
the services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$104,542 for Public Health Preparedness — Regional Plannirfg, Response and Exercises and Drills, funded from
85.45% federal funds from the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), (CFDA #96.069), and
14.55% general funds and $67,600 for Public Health Prepairedness — Cities Readiness Initiative, funded from
100% federal funds from the U.S. CDC, (CFDA #93.069), and $130,760 for Substance Misuse Prevention and

Related Health Promotion, funded from 100% federal funds
Services Administration (CFDA #93.959).

TOTAL: $302,902.00

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract fu

from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health

nds from the State for direct and indirect costs and

expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as
detailed in the attached budgets. Allowable costs and ¢ expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance

with applicable state and federal laws and regulations!
for capital additions or improvements, entertainment cos

!

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an appr

The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds
ts or any other costs not approved by the State.

oved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement

shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred durmg the previous month.

e
4. TInvoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the St

ate in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the

Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be subrnltted within twenty (20) working days following the
end of the month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the

State no later than sixty (60) days after the contract Com
of all allowable costs and expenses incurred by the Cont

pletlon Date. Said invoice shall contain a description

ractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient

funds are available in the Service category budget 11ne

/items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs

and expenses incurred in the performances of the serv1ces

Standard Exhibits A — T
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# 6. The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases,
decreases, or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for
that particular Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written
approval by the State. Budget revisions will not be acc‘epted after June 20" of each contract year.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from f[h‘g State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.

The remainder of this page is fntentionally left blank.

Standard Exhibits A = J Contractor Initials: @
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

I

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PRO VISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment: to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid coxgenants the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as
follows:

L
Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made |in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,

regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures! |

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determmatrons shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereuhder which file shall include all information necessary
to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor
shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentatlon regarding eligibility determinations that the

Department may request or require. i;
Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all apﬁilicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearlng re gardlng that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that
each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of hls/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with
Department regulations. ,

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that'it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in
order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State
may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or;sub-agreement if it is determined that payments,
gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees
or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any
services provided to any individual prior to the Effectlve ‘Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made
for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any servic es provided prior to the date on which the individual
applies for services or (except as otherwise provided byithe federal regulations) prior to a determination that
the individual is eligible for such services. ] 1

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obhgate or require the! Departrnent to purchase services hereunder at a rate
which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts
reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such séwrce or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by
the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the
term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final Expendlture Report hereunder, the Department shall

determine that the Contractor has used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense oth an such
|
i Initials:



costs, or has received payment in excess of such costs

or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to

ineligible individuals or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in wh

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor

COsts;
8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by t

1ch event new rates shall be established;
éthe amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of

i
&

he Contractor in which event failure to make such

repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder When the Contractor is permitted to determine
the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds
paid by the Department to the Contractor for seryices provided to any individual who is found by the

Department to be ineligible for such services at

established herein. b

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT,

any time during the period of retention of records

E
;DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:
z

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the ehglblhty records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

10.

11.

9.1 Fiscal Records:
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the

or collected by the Contractor during the Contra

1

Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and

performance of the Contract, and all income received

ctxi ‘Period, said records to be maintained in accordance

with accounting procedures and practices which gsufﬁc1ently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department and to include, without limitation, all ledgers,

books, records, and original evidence of costs
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuation

such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
S of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls,

and other records requested or required by the Department

9.2 Statistical Records:

Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services

during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and e11g1b1hty

(1nclud1ng all forms requlred to determine eligibi

hty for each recipient), records regarding the provision

~of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3

Medical Records: Where appropriate and as préscribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor

shall retain medical records on each patient/recipier’it of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the

agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be|
“Audlts of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit

and the provisions of Standards forE Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs,

of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Organizations”

Department within nine months after the close of the
prepared in accordance with the provision of Office

Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accountmg Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to

financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this

¢
i

(,dntract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated

representatives shall have access to all reports

and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for

purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcrlpts

10.2 Audit Liabilities:

In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal
audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments made under the Contract to which
exception has been taken or which have been disalllqwed because of such an exception.

¢ !

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be
disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the

Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be

Standard Exhibits A —J
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13.

14.

15.
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officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes directed

connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that the use or

disclosure by any party of any information concernmg a recipient for any purpose not directly connected

with the administration of the Department or the Contractor s responsibilities with respect to purchased

services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained hferein the covenants and conditions contained in the

Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contractifor any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department E

I

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim fmlanmal reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing
such other information as shall be deemed s%tglsfactory by the Department to justify the rate of
payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the
Department or deemed satisfactory by the Departnlent

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be SHbIl’lltt’d within sixty (60) days after the end of the term of
this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a
summary statement of progress toward goals i‘ and objectives stated in the Proposal and other

information required by the Department.

;s

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the
Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obhgatlons as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the ternf of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that 1f, iupon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor. |

D
Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, resé:a{rch reports, and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Gontract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), vxilas financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources
as were available or required, e.g., the United Stétes Department of Health and Human Services.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and ;Regulatlons In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with | all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any dlrectlon of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws
which shall impose an order or duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any government license or permit shall be required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the zsald services, the Contractor will procure said license
or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms gand conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the
term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protec%:lon agency, and shall be in conformance with local

building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.
Initials:Q Z
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16. Imsurance: Select either (1) or (2) below: f i
As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehenswe Genera] Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form,
the Insurance requirement checked under this section is appllcable to this contract:
i

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-I:13, XIV (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance
requirements of standard state contracts for contractors that quahfy for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed
$500,000, is comprehensive general liability insurance Htl amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified.

(1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work with the
State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000. ‘ §

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XTIV, (Supp.
2006), Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1. 1 Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor
shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain
and maintain in force, both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability
insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 per incident or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines
contract activities are a risk of lower liability. !

v'(2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for i msurance reqmrements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV (Supp.
2006). ‘

17. Renewal: Pl
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Sectié)nz, DHHS in its sole discretion may decide to offer a
two (2) year extension of this competitively procured agreement, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

18. Authority to Adjust

{
Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37 and Exhibit B, Paragraph 1 Funding Sources, to adjust funding from
one source of funds to another source of funds that are 1dent1ﬁed in the Exhibit B Paragraph 1 and within the prlce
limitation, and to adjust amounts if needed and justlﬁed! between State Fiscal Years and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both partle° and may be made without obtaining approval of
Governor and Council. ,

Standard Exhibits A —J Initials:
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows: Ly
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. % E
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including
without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole (§r in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon
continued appropriation or availability of funds, 1nclud1ng any subsequent changes to the appropriation or
availability of funds affected by any state or federal leglslatlve or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or ava11ab111ty of fundmg for this Agreement and the Scope of Services
provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or 1n ‘par’t In no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or ava11able funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or
modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such
funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the nght to reduce, terminate or modify services under this
Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notlce of such reduction, termination or modification. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other( source or account into the Account(s) identified in
block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or
unavailable. <.:
19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this ¢ )ntract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; i
i
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for, any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30 days
after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exe gCising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop
and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a
process to meet those needs. ' ‘

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State jand shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any mformatlon or data requested by the State related to
the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of
the Transition Plan to the State as requested. |

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, mcludmg but not limited to clients receiving services under
the Agreement are transitioned to having services dehvered by another entity 1nclud1ng contracted providers or
the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for unmterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifyin g;-g clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State
as described above. :

Standard Exhibits A —J Initials:
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the «followmg meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting prmmples established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. P

} ;

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Serv1ces

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submltted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Sterwces to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contraet
UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed,to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time.
CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document forepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulga ted pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative

‘Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of] implementing State of NH and federal regulations

promulgated thereunder.

i

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available, for these services.

H
Standard Exhibits A —J . Initials:@
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NH Department of Health %’md Human Services

Standard Exhibit D

’ i
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pgrovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701
et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representatlve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
General Provisions execute the following Certification: ! !

!
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN Ilz\IDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SER\'{I:CES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION — CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulatlon provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant durmg the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certification set out below is a material representation o of sfact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide sﬁsiaensmn or debarment. Contractors using this form

!

should send it to: i

Commnssngnier
NH Department of Health a‘nd Human Services,
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH§03301

i
|

1) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to pr0v1dle \a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohi?biited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the
actions that will be taken against employees for viola :ic“m of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness programi fo inform employee’s about:

!
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-freeE vjyorkplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the

workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a
copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); ‘

under the grant, the employee will: ,
Standard Exhibits A —J Initials:

Page 19 of 32 : Date: /é/;(— 2 3

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by pi‘ariagraph (a) that, as a condition of er@ent




(1)  Abide by the terms of the statement; and | |
P

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conv1ct10n for a violation of a criminal drug statute
occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

r

b
(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)

(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual

gnotlce of such conviction. Employers of convicted

employees must provide notice, including position ‘ugtle to every grant officer on whose grant activity the

convicted employee was working, unless the Federal|

tagency has designated a central point for the receipt

of such notices. Notice shall include the 1dent1ﬁcat10n number(s) of each affected grant;

!

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so conv1cted

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against suéh an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfgctorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other

appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain ;a drug-free workplace through implementation of

paragraphs (a)> (b): (C): (d)9 (e)> and (f) % v

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sit’ié(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

I .
Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Town of Exeter From: 7/1/2013 or date of G&C AppF

roval, whichever is later To: 6/30/2015

Contractor Name Per

i
¢

Donald Clement, Chairman, Board of Selectmen

od Covered by this Certification

Name a 1tle of Authorlzed ontractor Representatlve

5 /J;/olé /3

Contgactor Representatlve Slgnature

Standard Exhibits A —J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard E%(hibit E

!
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
I

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov151ons agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as 1dent1ﬁed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification: | ;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CON TRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE — CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title I[V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 7/ 1/2013 or date of G&C Approval, whichewer is later, through 6/30/2015

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence arl ofﬁcer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by; specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

bl
b

(2) If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds, [ llave been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spec1ﬁc mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Formi LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”,
accordance with its instructions, attached and 1dent1ﬁed as Standard Exhibit E-I.

B

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of thlS certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub -grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certlfy and disclose accordingly.

.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon whlch reliance was placed when this transaction was

made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction

imposedhby Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be

subjegt tp civil p Mno less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
} / " | Chairman, Board of Selectmen

Con?actor Slghature Contractor s Representative Title
Town of Exeter 4/ / / LYy I
Contractor Name /Date

l
l
|
Standard Exhibits A —J ;
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SU éPEN SION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY

MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General =Prov1srons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the followmg Certification:

Instructions for Certification

1.

Standard Exhibits A - J

; %
By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. Ll

[
i

The inability of a person to provide the certification reduired below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, thej prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certiﬁcation or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Health and Human Servicges';’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participatipifi in this transaction.
The certification in this clause is a material representatlon of fact upon which reliance was placed when
DHHS determined to enter into this transition. If it is later1 determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

' i
The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospecl:tive primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous Py reason of changed circumstances.
The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended ? “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transition,”

participant ” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” ‘,prmcrpal ” “proposal,” and “voluntary excluded,”

used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rule
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submittmg this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, sus 3ended declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submltting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inehgibihty and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Covered Transaction”, “provided by DHHS, without modlﬁcation in all lower tier covered transactions and
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. P

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a ceitiﬁcation of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended 1nehg1ble, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is errongous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). I

Contractor Initials:

[ —
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* 9.

10.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS B

L.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required bfl ithis clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings. b
Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transac‘uon with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from part1c1pat10q in this transaction, in addition to other remedies

available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
B

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best iof its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
(b

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposedé for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily

excluded from covered transactions by any Federal aepanment or agency;
)

b. have not within a three-year period precedmg thlS /proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission | of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubhc (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement,

theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of r!ecords, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property; 3

c. are not presently indicted for otherwise cr1m1nally on 01v111y charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this certification;
and B

d. have not within a three-year period preceding th1s application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cert1fy to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Lower Tier Covered Transactions b

Standard Exhibits A — I
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By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contrgacit), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined
in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge an‘d belief that it and its principals:

E

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed ;for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily

excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

t
;

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal contract)

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include
this clause entitled “Certification Regardmg Debarment, §uspen510n Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion —
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without mod1ﬁcat10ni in all lower tier covered transactions and in all

l

solicitatigns for IOYer overed transactions. L
/ /L/ / Chairman, Board of Selectmen

Contractor Slgnature Contractor’ s Representatxve Title
bl

Town of Exeter FS / Lol /alﬂ/J

Contractor Name i/ Date




Standard

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisi
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the C

isions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
General Provisions, to execute the following
[

1
L

ontractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply

with-all applicable provisions of the Americans with Dlsabllmes Act of 1990,

W /Z:&&(—-S% Chaifm@ Board of Selectmen

s

Contractor Slgnature Contracto

Town of Exeter

r’js Representative Title

5 os/20) %

Contractor Name

Standard Exhibits A — I
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H
i
CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

[

i

P
Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoké, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any,mdoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services are funded b}} Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loén; guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s
services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of
facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Fallure to comply with the provisions of the law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative
compliance order on the responsible entity.

ei
i‘:

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General EProv1s1ons agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: F '
|
1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor ‘agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable provisions of Public Law 103—227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.
b

|

i

0%/;/// /M Chairman, Board of Selectmen

Contractor Signature Contractor’s Representative Title

Town of Exeter *{\'/2% 3

Contractor Name Date/

Standard Exhibits A —J !
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NH Department of Healthf and Human Services
|
STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCATL AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Ptoyisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and
Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of the
HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As deﬁned herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of

Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT }

[
I H

(1) Definitions.
a.
b.

H

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.
“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. !

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. 1

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same mefamng as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. B
“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. |
“Health Care Operations” shall have the same m%dning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. l
“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Title
XIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Reco‘{/ery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portablhty and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indw1dually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts
160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal; representatlve in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Prlva‘cy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. } }

“Protected Health Information™ shall have the same| meanmg as the term “protected health information” in
45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the lnformatlon created or received by Business Associate from or on
behalf of Covered Entity. ;

“Required by Law” shall have the same meamng as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. ;‘

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services: or his/her
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means 1pr0tected health information that is not secured by a
technology standard that renders protected healtn information unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is
accredited by the American National Standards Instltute

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deﬁned herein shall have the meaning established under 45

C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from tlme to time, and the HITECH Act,
Standard Exhibits A —J ' Contractor Initials:
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(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information!

h

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, mamtam or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the serv1ces outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule. i

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administratic n of the Business Associate;
II.  Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms setlforth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health ¢ care operations of Covered Entity.

I

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held conﬁdent1a11y and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the Ithlrd party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the ex‘tent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such d1sclo§ure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered| Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

1

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business A55001ate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or Idlsclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assoc 1ate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such add t1onal restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards. !

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.
,r
a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Pri 1vacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use or
disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, mcludmg any security incident involving Covered Entity
data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.
r !
L.
b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sectlons of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of ms 1ntema1 policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received | from or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for ipurposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. i |

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business| ;aJs"sociates that receive, use or have access to PHI under
the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere t& the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor s intended business associates, who will be
receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rlghts of enforcement and indemnificatio such

Standard Exhibits A - J } f Contractor Initials:
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(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a.

business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information. |

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a writtén request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure ¢ f PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s ¢ omphance with the terms of the Agreement.

,,
Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered

Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requlre‘fnents under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a De31gnated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for {amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such dlsclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures as
would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Sectlon 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrli'ten request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to| fulfill its obligations to provide an accountmg of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.
In the event any individual requests access to, ame cndment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall w'1th1n two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the respons1b111ty of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to;Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Prlvacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as requlred by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
respolse as soon as practicable. |
|
Within ten (10) business days of termination of thé Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entlty, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agre ement and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasi 319, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shal] continue to extend the protections of the Agreement,
to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI If Covered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been desjtrig)yed.

b
P

f

|

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance w1th 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibits A —J 3 Contractor Initials; _
Page 28 of 32 Date: 3 2/,




b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Asso’jeiate of any changes in, or revocation of permission

(5) Termination for Cause

provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business As

PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
1'64‘506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

soc1ate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of

PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or d1§elosure of PHL.
I

A,

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breaeh by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entlty may either immediately terminate the Agreement or
provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered
Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termmatl(lm nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the

violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a.

Standard Exhibits A —J
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Definitions -and Regulatory References. All terms used but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and ‘:ecurlty Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.
!

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary {for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rlile, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledjges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity {n the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exh{bit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to thlS end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are
declared severable. ‘
b
Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the, use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. i

Contractor Initials:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Town of Exeter

The State Agency Name

Na

me of Contractor

Signature of Authorized éepresentative

LISA L. BUINO, MSN, APRN

Sig

ature of Aufhorized Representative

Donald Clement

Name of Authorized Representative

BUREAU CHIEF

. Name of Authorized Representative

Chairman, Board of Selectmen

Title of Authorized Representative

bL-—4-(3

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Standard Exhibits A —J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
‘ 1
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDEﬁAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT ( F\FATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Acit (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awardeh on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related

to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub- -grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below

$25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a totaﬂ award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject

to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award

l

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-cm\ard and Executive Compensation Information), the

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:;

1) Name of entity ;
2) Amount of award i
3) Funding agency i
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding actrori.
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance :
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #) L
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives 1f
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the F ederal government, and those revenues are greater
than $25M annually and i
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provrs1ons agrees to comply with the provisions of The
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Pubhc Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR
Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensatlon Information), and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the
following Certification: ;

\ ;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed mformatmn as outlined above to the NH Department of
Health and Human Services and to comply with all apphcable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Trapsparency Act. : 3
g
Donald Clement, Chairman, Board of Selectmen
(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

(Contractor Representafive Signature)

22 AU/J’

Town of Exeter
(Contractor Name)

Standard Exhibits A —J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
i |
F ORIVIg A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov1s1ons I certify that the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate. 1 ‘

|
1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 07397109 £
b

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed ‘\ﬁscal year, did your business or organization receive
(1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U} S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-
grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 ¢ or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperatlve agreements?

XNO

. YES B
If the answer to #2 abowrxe 1s NO, stop here
.
Lo
If the answer to #2 above is YES, é)léase answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the c}:ompensatlon of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

‘

I
__NO X YES ‘1 f
‘ L
If the answer to #3 above§ 1§ YES, stop here
|

If the answer to #3 above is NO, pl,ea}se answer the following:
K
4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compferi'lsated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: ]

]v
1

Name: Russell Dean  Amount: $106.295

Name: Brian Comeau Amount: $102.548

Name: Ken Berkenbush Amount: $85.812

I
|
|
i
i
\
3
t
;
X
H
|
1
|
\
i
i
i

Name: Mary Cook Amount: $52,622

Name: Judy Jervis Amount: $49.975 N

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials:

- 11/,
Page 32 of 32 . i Date: 5 2L/ /T
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TOWN OF EXETER

town.exeter.nh.us

Certificate of Vote

i ,
I, Andrea Kohler, Town Clerk for the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire do hereby certify that: {1} at the

Meeting held on March 12, 1994, the Town Meeting voted to authorize the Town to apply for, accept
and expend money from state, federal or other govern nental unit or a private source which becomes
available during the fiscal year, in accordance with the arocedure set forth in New Hampshire (RSA
31:95-b); (2) at the regular meetingon ___ 5/20/13 : ___, the Board of Selectmen voted to
accept the New Hampshire Public Health Network Serv ces Public Health Emergency Response
extension funds and to enter into contract with the Newﬁ Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services, Division of Public Health Services. The Board of Selectmen further authorized the Chairman,
Board of Selectmen to execute any documents which maf;y be necessary to effectuate this contract; (3)
this authorization has not been revoked, annulled or ame;nded in any manner whatsoever, and remains
in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and (4) the fbllowing erson has been appointed to and

now occupies the office indicated under item {2) above /

Donald Clement, Chairman, Board of
Selectmer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Town Clerk of Exeter, New Hampshlrethls

_ AL dayof 4770,177 20 /3 | | o

Aindrea Kohler, Tan Clerk

State of New Hampshire County of Rockingham

On this the ?\9. day of i) }ggg , 20 5 , before me iU?M (DU.‘M\, [ Notary Public/

lustice of the Peace], the undersigned officer, personally appeared &~ who
acknowledged herself to be the Town Clerk of L New Hampshlre and that she, as such
Town Clerk, being authorized to do so, executed the foregomg instrument for the purpose therein
contained. : :

In witness whereof | hereunto set my hand and official sez;il.
2‘) 7u@*—(/:l/lv/

Justiee-of-the-Peace/Notary Public

COMMISION EXESEMTION DATE:  SEAL

Notary Pubﬂc - New Hampshire :
My Commission Expires July 11, 2017 :
EXETER HEALTH DEPARTMENT
20 COURT STREET, EXE‘fER, NH 03833-2716

(603) 7736132
FAX (603) 773-6128
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NH Publie Risk Management Exchange C ERTI F IC ATE OF C OVE RAG E

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) is organlzed under the New Hampshire Revnsed Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex’ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of palitical subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth beILw In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex’, including but not limited to the]ﬁnal and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex’ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party’s per occumrence hmnt shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage ‘Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage’s C (Public Officials Errors and Omlssmns) D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provnsnon of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standmg of the New Hampshwe Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the date thls certn" cate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year. . |
This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights ﬁpon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below. b

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage:

Town Of Exeter 170 } NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex’
10 Front Street I Bow Brook Place

Exeter, NH 03833 ! 46 Donovan Street

P Concord, NH 03301-2624

X General Liability (Occurrence Form) 1120131 | 1/1/2014 Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000
Professional Liability {describe) i General Aggregate $ 5,000,000
Claims Fire Damage (Any one ‘
] Made [0 o©ccurrence | fire) $
1
i Med Exp (Any one person) | $
X_| Automobile Liability 112013 || 1172014 e
Deductible ~ Comp and Coll: $1,000 } Combined Single Limit $5,000,000
H (Each Accident)
Any auto . Aggregate $5,000,000
|
X Workers’ Compensation & Employers’ Liability 111/2013 11/2014 X Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000
Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000
Disease — Palicy Limit $
X | Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 1/1/2013 1/1/2014 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:
$1,000
Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only. ‘
i
CERTIFICATE HOLDER: | | Additional Covered Party | | Loss Payee Primex’ — NH Public Risk Management Exchange
Pl
' F By: . Tameny Deaver
Department of Health & Human Services ‘ Date:  5/15/2013 tdenver@nhprimex.org
Div. of Public Health Services : Please direct inquires to:
Bureau of Community Health Services/Community Public Health Develop Section. Primex® Claims/Coverage Services
129 Pleasant Street . 603-225-2841 phone
Concord NH 03301 L 603-228-3833 fax

i
i
i
1
[




(13

P e mclanse
LT
i

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

i
P
b

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Exeter, New Hampshire

[
i
[

1k

We have audited the accompanying fmancnﬁal statements of the governmental activi-
ties, the business-type activities, each majgr ifund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Exeter, New Hampshlre as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011, which collectively compnse the Town'’s basic financial state-
ments as required by accounting principles ! ]generally accepted in the United States
of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opmlon on these financial statements
based on our audit. |

We conducted our audit in accordance with ‘audltlng standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits con-
tained in Government Auditing Standards, lssued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the fi nanCIal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, lon a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assess-
ing the accounting principles used and S|gn|t" cant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opnmons

As discussed in Note 2 in the financial statements management has not recorded a
liability for its net OPEB obligation in its governmental activities, and accordingly, has
not recorded an expense for the current perlod change in that liability. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the liability be
presented in the government-wide financial statements The amount that would be
reported in government-wide financial statements for the Town’s governmental
activities are not reasonably determinable. The Town estimates that the amount to
be reported in the enterprise funds and busmess -type activities is immaterial.




-

>
hd "

In our opinion, because of the effects of the matter discussed in the preceding para-
graphs, the financial statements referred to prevnously do not present fairly, in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the financial position of the governmental activities of the Town of Exeter,
New Hampshire as of December 31, 2011 or the changes in its financial position
for the year then ended. o

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present
fairly, in all material respects, the respectlve financial position of the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Exeter, New Hampshire, as of December 31, 2011, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where appllcable cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accountlng pnncup|es generally accepted in the United
States of America. 1 {.

The Town has not presented a Schedule of Fundlng Progress of its Other-Post
Employment Benefits Liability that, under accountnng principles generally accepted in
the United States, is necessary to supplement although not required to be part of,
the basic financial statements.

Molarson  Heath *

Nashua, New Hampshire
November 30, 2012
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TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OFNET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
P

ASSETS

Current:
Cash and short-term investments
Investments

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Property taxes
User fees
Departmental and other
intergovernmental
Due from external parties
Other assets
Noncurrent:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Property taxes
Capital Assets:
Capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation
Land and construction in progress

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable
Other liabilities
Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Other liabilities, net of current portion

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Grants and other statutory restrictions
Permanent funds:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See nofes to financial statements.

P
[
P

i Governmental

Business-Type

| Activities Activities Total
$ 12761074  § 5272520  $ 18,033,603
352,560 - 352,560
| | 1,433,566 - 1,433,566
- 690,526 690,526
- 138,290 - 138,290
| 97,803 - 97,803
| 52,088 : 52,088
| 80,802 31,082 111,884
|1 601,899 - 601,899
| 14,302,756 10,446,582 14,749,337
| 18,501,397 1,161,337 9,662,734
28,322,234 17,602,056 45,924,200
| 458,083 438,719 896,802
S 10,430 10,430
L 12,278 - 12,278
| 1 213,807 85,100 299,006
12,162,637 - 12,162,637
1392744 624,049 1,016,793
158,786 1,739 160,525

-

1,443,800 7,947,375 9,391,175
902,159 33,040 935,199
15,744,384 9,140,461 24,884,845
10/244,037 4,637,987 14,882,024
350,951 - 359,951
53,454 . 53,454
419,514 - 419,514
1,500,894 3,823,608 5,324,502
$_12577,850  $ 8461595  $ 21,039,445

11
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ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Departmental
Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund Balances;
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

See notes to financial statements.

i
Loy

TOWN OF EXETER| NEW HAMPSHIRE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

[
Ik

BALANCE SHEET
L
DECEMBER 31, 2011

L
o

Nonmajor Total
L Governmental Governmental
- General Funds Funds
$ 12,419,464 $ 341,611 $ 12,761,075
17,366 345,194 352,560
o
12,367,900 - 2,367,900
138,290 - 138,290
1 45,028 52,775 97,803
i 152,088 - 52,088
_. 180802 - — 80802
$ 15,110,938 $ 739,580 $ 15,850,518
i'.
$ 443965 3 14118 $ 458,083
1,976,831 12,279 1,989,110
174,183 - 174,183
12,162,637 - 12,162,837
14,757,616 26,397 14,784,013
345,243 53,454 398,697
- 1,159,109 1,159,109
366,931 - 366,931
443,521 - 443,521
(802,373) (499,380) (1,301,753)
353,322 713,183 1,066,505
$ 15110938 $ 739,580 $  15850,518

§
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TOWN OF EXETER NEW HAMPSHIRE

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31 2011

Total governmental fund balances "‘ $ 1,066,505
+ Capital assets used in governmental actlvmes are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 12,804,152

* Revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accountmg .
and are not deferred until collection. ; 1; 1,644,396

* In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. ;;-, (39,714)

* Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable‘cibmpensated
absences, and landfill liability are not due and payable in the current

period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. §2;897,4892
Net assets of governmental activities - $ 12,577,850

See notes to financial statements. o

14




i
i

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
P
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR END ED DECEMBER 31, 2011
I

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
. General Funds Funds
Revenues: )
Property taxes $% 1,919,474 $ - $ 11,919,474
Motor vehicle registrations . 12,007,112 - 2,007,112
Penalties, interest, and other taxes . 285,734 - 285,734
Charges for services 1,188,852 581,179 1,770,031
Intergovernmental 1,092,171 ‘ 163,435 1,255,606
Licenses and permits i 115,503 - 115,503
Investment income 7: 10,000 2,907 12,907
Contributions . 35,728 87,174 122,902
Miscellaneous - 156,981 37,865 194,846
|
|
Total Revenues 16,811,555 872,560 17,684,115
Expenditures: ‘
Current: ‘
General government ‘ 3,621 ,560 131,362 3,752,922
Public safety | 6,926,968 255,694 7,182,662
Public works | 32,671 443 10 2,671,453
Health and human services - 275,698 84,354 360,052
Culture and recreation 1,198,891 530,094 1,728,985
Sanitation . 832,678 - 832,678
Conservation i 19,641 - 19,641
Debt service ‘ : 571,303 - 571,303
Capital outlay 393,827 90,345 484,172
Total Expenditures 16,512,009 1,091,859 17,603,868
Excess (deficiency) of revenues PR
over expenditures i1 299,546 (219,299) 80,247
Other Financing Sources (Uses): i
Bond proceeds ' , - 347,544 347,544
Transfers in i 518,433 362,866 881,299
Transfers out (613,762) (140,228) (753,990)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) i | (95,329) 570,182 474,853
Change in fund balance ©1204,217 350,883 555,100
Fund Equity, at Beginning of Year, as reclassified : 149,105 362,300 511,405
Fund Equity, at End of Year $ i 353,322 $ 713,183 $ 1,066,505
See notes to financial statements. ‘
15,
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TOWN OF EXETE R‘ NEW HAMPSHIRE
1
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

» Governmental funds report capital outlays as éxpenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those jassets is allocated

over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:
t :

Capital outlay purchases, net 35

Depreciation

i

= Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancesx Therefore, the
recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(e.g., property taxes) differ between the two statements This amount
represents the net change in deferred revenue'’

i

» The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds anl‘d leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes t'le financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, ho Never, has any effect on

net assets:

Repayments of debt
Issuance of debt

» In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. Pl

» Some expenses reported in the Statement of *Actwities, such as
compensated absences, do not require the use ‘of current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported as expendltures in the
governmental funds. ‘

Compensated absences

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to financial statements.
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$ 555100

390,102
(599,513)

(210,050)

629,247
(579,023)

5,580

(36,386)

$ 155,057




TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GENERAL FUND

)
i
1

STATEMENT OF REVElN UES AND OTHER SOURCES,
AND EXPENDITURES AND QTHER USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

I:
i
FOR THE YEAR E\lleD DECEMBER 31, 2011

Actual Variance with
: Amounts Final Budget
Original | Final (Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis) (Negative)
Revenues and other sources: :
Property taxes $ 11,816, 93¢ $ 11,831,381 $ 11,831,381 $ -
Motor vehicle registrations 1,938, 000 1,938,000 1,990,860 52,860
Interest, penalties, and other taxes 264, 447 250,000 285,734 35,734
Charges for services 1,200, 000 1,199,200 1,188,852 (10,348)
intergovernmental 1,241 230 1,241,230 997,204 (244,026)
Licenses and permits 225, 000 115,750 115,503 (247)
Investment income 10, 000 10,000 8,543 (1,457)
Miscellaneous 54, 714 164,764 156,981 (7,783)
Other financing sources: . i !:
Transfers in 24, 600’ 24,600 211,334 186,734
Use of fund balance 310, 000 310,000 310,000 -
Total Revenues 17,084, 925’ 17,084,925 17,096,392 11,467
i }
Expenditures and other uses: %
Current: C
General government 3,092, Qﬂ 3' 3,339,579 3,263,636 75,943
Public safety 7,095 615; 7,058,003 6,828,143 229,860
Public works 2,706, 564 2,472,248 2,460,382 11,866
Sanitation 868, 628? 839,748 784,352 55,396
Health and human services 312 759, 289,768 275698 - 14,070
Culture and recreation 1,430, 484’ 1,433,010 1,414,530 : 18,480
Conservation 51 475~ ‘ 10,105 9,141 964
Capital outlay 760 261f 876,238 727,799 148,439
Debt service:
Principal 602,0(;)8,‘ 602,008 602,008 -
Interest 164,218’ 164,218 161,938 2,280
Other financing uses: T
Transfers out i - 205,479 (205,479)
Total Expenditures 17,084,925 17,084,925 16,733,106 351,819
Excess of revenues and other sources ' '
over expenditures and other uses $ $ - $ 363,286 $ 363,286

]
See notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF EXETER; NEW HAMPSHIRE
R
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

.
i
STATEMENT, OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
|
| Business-Type Activities
| Enterprise Funds
- Water Sewer
] . Fund Fund Total
|
ASSETS |
|
Current; P
Cash and short-term investments $i 12,814,457 $ 2458072 $ 5,272,529
User fees, net of allowance for uncollectibles T . 304,661 385,865 690,526
Other assets | - 31,082 31,082
Due from/ to other funds I ;13,380 {13,380) -
O
Total current assets i3,132,498 2,861,639 5,994,137
' Noncurrent: :
Capital assets, net : )
of accumulated depreciation | 17,208,927 3,237,655 10,446,582
LLand and construction in progress i_; 638,658 522,679 1,161,337
Total noncurrent assets ‘_ 7,847,585 3,760,334 11,607,919
TOTAL ASSETS ‘ ;0,980.083 6,621,973 17,602,056
LIABILITIES L
Current; :
Accounts payable I b 145191 293,528 438,719
Retainage payable Lp - 10,430 10,430
Accrued liabilities w‘ 64,967 20,142 85,109
Current portion of long-term liabilities: |1
Bonds payable 11 419,164 204,885 624,049
.Other liabilities & 1,100 639 1,739
5 I A
Total current liabilities ! 630,422 529,624 1,160,046
Noncurrent: {
Bonds payable, net of current portion [ 6,494,014 1,453,361 7,947,375
Other liabilities, net of current portion | 20,893 12,147 33,040
AN - -
Total noncurrent liabilities { _11 6,514,907 1,465,508 7,980,415
‘i :
TOTAL LIABILITIES ! 17,145,329 1,895,132 9,140,461
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,981,415 2,656,572 4,637,987
Unrestricted _ 1,853,339 - 1,970,269 3,823,608
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 3,834,754 $ 4,626,841 $ 8,461,595
See notes ta financial statements.
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TOWN OF EXETER% NEW HAMPSHIRE

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
P

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED [)ECEMBER 31, 2011

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer
Eund Fund Total’
"Operating Revenues: ‘
Charges for services 3 2,4{}8,941 $ 2,275,093 $ 4,724,034
Other - 76,650 41,418 118,068
Total Operating Revenues 2,525,591 2,316,511 4,842,102
Operating Expenses: DL .
Operating expenses 1,652,431 1,290,950 2,843,381
Depreciation 407,473 269,915 677,388
B —
Total Operating Expenses 4959,904 1,560,865 3,520,769
i
Operating Income (Loss) 5§5,687 755,646 1,321,333
|
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 1
intergovernmental revenue Po- 63,602 63,602
Interest expense __(221,845) (36,859) (258,704)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net __L22f‘1,845) 26,743 (195,102)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 34‘;3,842 782,389 1,126,231
Transfers: 5;
Transfers in , 465,199 - 465,199
Transfers out g§195,7772 (396,730) (592,507)
T '
i
Change in Net Assets 613,264 385,659 998,923
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 3221 490 4,241,182 7,462,672
L

H 1
Net Assets at End of Year $ 3,834,754 $ 4,626,841 $ 8,461,595

See notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
|
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

H
FOR THE YEAR E‘N:DED DECEMBER 31, 2011

; Business-Type Activities
v Enterprise Funds
Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
Cash Fiows From Operating Activities: .
Receipts from customers and users $ 2562634 $ 2237134 $ 4799768
Payments to vendors and employees {1,441,014) (1,053,027) (2,494,041)
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities ", 1,121,620 1,184,107 2,305,727
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: :
Transfer in 465,199 - 465,199
Transfer out (195,777) (396,730) (592,507)
Intergovernmental revenue _ - 63,602 63,602
Net Cash (Used For) Noncapital Financing Activities : 269,422 (333,128) (63,706)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes § ; 1,534,986 1,013,670 2,548,656
Acquisition and construction of capital assets : (607,080) (512,796) (1,119,876)
Principal payments on bonds and notes ﬁ (259,806) (177,804) (437,610)
Interest expense (203,584) {24,989) (228,573)
Net Cash (Used For) Capital and Related Financing Activities! | .464,516 298,081 762,597
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments 1,855,558 1,149,060 3,004,618
Cash and Short-Term Investments, Beginning of Year : 958,899 1,309,012 2,267,911
Cash and Short-Term Investments, End of Year - $ 2,814,457 $ 2458072 $ 5272529
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by (Used For] Operating Activities:
Operating income - $ 565,687 $ 755,646 $ 1,321,333
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net -
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation i 407 473 269,915 677,388
Changes in assets and liabilities: :
User fees ' 33,109 (52,228) (19,119)
Other assets b 3,934 (62,492) (58,558)
Warrants and retainage payable " 118,273 274,312 392,585
Other liabilities Sk {6,856) {1,046) (7.902)

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities TE S 1,121,620 $ 1,184,107 $ 2305727

See notes to financial statements.




TOWN OF EXETER; NEW HAMPSHIRE

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Private
Purpose
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments . $ 17,026 $ 1,960,075
Investments . f - 1,733,474
Total Assets ‘ 17,026 3,693,549
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Due to other governments ‘ - 3,015,368
Deposits held in custody P - 626,093
Due to others : - 52,088
Total Liabilities ‘ - 3,693,549
NET ASSETS
Net assets P $ 17,026 $ -

See notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF EXETER! NEW HAMPSHIRE
¥
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDIIE[’ DECEMBER 31, 2011

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds

Additions: x

Interest $ 52
Total additions 52
Deductions: :
Scholarships ' 300
Total deductions ‘ 300
Net increase | (248)
Net assets:
Beginning of year D 17,274
End of year | . % 17,026

See notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF EXETER, NH
FIRE DEPARTMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

i ;»
A,
i I

i

..TO PROTECT THE LIVES AND PROPERTY OF
THE CITIZENS AND VISITORS OF THE TOWN OF
EXETER BY USING AN ALL HAZARD APPROACH
TO INSURE MITIGATION oF PREPARATION
FOR, RESPONSE TO, AND RECOVERY FROM
THE EFFECTS OF NATUF §AL AND MAN-MADE
DISASTERS, AS WELL AS NATIONAL SECURITY
CONCERNS CONSISTENT WITH THE
RESOURCES PROVIDED. -

!




Board of Siélectmen

s

The Board of Selectmen serve as the governmg body of the Town of Exeter.

i
: |

Members are elected annually in Marchsto staggered 3-year terms. The Board

i

reorganizes each March after the Annual Town Election and elects a
Chairman, 3 g

|
Vice-Chairman, and a Clerk of the Boardf

b
J

Terms of office for our current Selectm?p are as follows:
P
]
[
|




KEY ADMINISTRATI\IQ?E PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name:

Name of Bureau/Section:

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

|

Town of Exeter

i
x'

Division of Publlc Health Services, Bureau of Public
Health Systems Policy & Performance, Community

Health Development Section, Reglonal Public Health
Network Servnces

1!»

Annual Salary‘Of Key

Admmlstratlve
Person nel |

Percentage of Salary
Paid By Contract

Ken Berkenbush, Assistant Fire Chief/Health

3 B

$818 629

Officer 0.00%|:
Mary Cook, Public Health Emergency .
Preparedness Coordinator $53 794 100.00%

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Ite

i

l
Annual Salary Of Key
Administrétive
Personnel

m 1 of Budget request)

Percentage of Salary |
Paid By Contract |

Ken Berkenbush, Assistant Fire Chief/Health
Officer

[N
I

$90,402

Mary Cook, Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Coordinator

v
N

T

$54,870

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative F’ersonnel are top-level agency leadership (Pr
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract Provide their name, title, annual salary and

percentage of annual salary paid from agreement.

|

eS|dent Executive Director, CEO, CFO, efc), and

P

7
{
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EDUCATION
2008
1993
1986

1983

Work Experience

1995-present

1989-1998

1984-1995

Current Certifications

i

1

[
Ken Be!ﬁfkenbush

)
-
!1
i
i

Granite State College, Concerd NH. AS Busmess

Quinsigmond Community %ollege, Woaocester Ma. AS Paramedicine
&
Northern Essex Commumty Coliege, Haverhill Ma. EMT Certificate
\ 1
Pentucket Regional H|gh School West Newbury Ma. High School Dlploma
§
L
L

Town of Exeter Fire Department Exeter NH.

Assistant Fire Chief / Health Off' icer 2000-present Responsible for fire
department operations, emeggenqc medical services, prevention, plans review,
. fire investigation, Health dep'a‘rtment"rnosqunto control, waste water, -
anvironmental services, code ’compilance, Point of Contact Exeter Region/AHHR
18. Supervise 26 uniformed personnel and 2 civilian.

American Medical Response New England Division

Paramedic: Responsible for pre hospntal emergency medical care in accordance
with area protocols. Also respons:b!e for Regional Advance Life Support
Training, and Material Management.

Towi of West Newbury DPW West Newbury Ma
l §

Heavy Equipment Operator |

¢

{
| a
Fire Officer Level |, I}, 1N |
EMT-Paramedic L
Hazardous Material Technician |
Multiple Company Tactical Operlat:ons
Firefighter Level ill : 3

i

I

5

t

t




WORK EXPERIENCE:

May 1, 2011 to Present

B
ik
1
X
§
}

a

MARY R. COOK M.Ed, CHES
Exeter Fire Department
20 Court Street
Exeter NH 03833
603- 418 6404
mcook@town exeter nh.us
‘: I
ol
i l1
Public Health .Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
Exeter Fire Department and the Seacoast Public Health
Region | ;
Responsible for providing Regional Public Health
Emergency Planmng and Response Coordination for 23
towns in the s\epcoast region of New Hampshire.
H

o
b

b
i

December 2008 to April 2011 York Hospitai zind the Healthy Maine Partnerships

February 2005 to
December 2008

District Tobacco Coordinator

i
f !

Provided support and guidance to the York District Healthy
Maine Partnershlps assuring that a coordinated,
comprehenswe ‘systematlc and evidence based approach to
tobacco preventlon and control is implemented throughout
the district. | |
o
‘. ‘3
City of Portsmouth NH
Public Health Coordmator
i i
Provided coordmatlon‘ of the Greater Portsmouth Public Health
Network that includes the towns of New Castle, Rye, Newington,
Greenland and the Cl‘gy of Portsmouth in assessment, policy
development, and assurance of the Ten Essential Services of
Public Health. Respon§1ble for development of All Health Hazard
Community Response 1Plan Pandemic Plan, Isolation and
Quarantine, Point of Dlstrlbutlon Risk Communication, Medical
Surge and Volunteer plaps for the Greater Portsmouth Emergency
Planning Response Team Designed, conducted, and evaluated a
series of workshops, table tops and full scale exercises to test the
region’s commumcatlons command and control, emergency
operation center and response to all health hazards.

5
!
\
I
S
|
|
4
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? 3
June 2003-February 2005 American Red Cross Great Bay Chapter
Director of Health a d Safety Services
Provided coordinated| plannlng, implementation, and evaluation of
Health and Safety !Serv1ces within the chapter's jurisdiction.
Responsibilities included needs assessment, marketing, program and
human resources development managed a $200,000 budget.
!
November 2003-June 2003 American Red Cross (‘fneat Bay Chapter
Tobacco Prevention Director for The
Rochester Tobacco ﬁrée Coalition:
Developed and coordmc ted a coalition whose mission was to
promote and advocatejfor a tobacco free lifestyle by providing
education, awareness and support to youth and families in
Rochester.
Supervised two youth coordmators who coordinated youth
mentoring programs at the Rochester Middle School.
Established goals and objectlves with coalition members.
Tobacco Grant Administrator
Developed measurable outcomes and Performance Measures
» }
2000-November 2003 Dover Police Departmer})t, Dover, N.H.
Substance Abuse Prevention Coordinator:
Youth Advisor for a 25§O%member coalition
Instructor for tobacco education classes
Coordinator of educatlonal activities/programs
related to substance abuse issues
Representative for state and local tobacco advisory committees
1991-1999 Franklin Regional Hos{pltal, Franklin, N.H.
Health Educator: | |
Safety and Wellness Instructor for adults and teens
Smoking Cessation Spemallst
Women’s Health Educator
Outreach Coordinator for community events
Coordinated youth tobacco free coalition
Coordinated annual Hea th and Safety Fairs
Designed, promoted, and evaluated health and wellness programs at
“schools and busmesses

3
Y

EDUCATION: Notre Dame College, Manchester, N.H.
Bachelor of Arts Degree|in Business Education, 1984

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.
Masters Degree in Edu;cation/ Health Promotion and Wellness
Management, 2002 | |




Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human SErvices

i,
Bidder/Program Name: Town of Exeter

i

dget Req for: Regional Public Health Network Services
(Name of RFP) i\

L
Budget Period: July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 53,794.66 | § 5,917.41 | $ 59,712.07 |Vote by Board of Sel *
2. Employee Benefits $ 10,758.84 | $ 118347 | § 11,942.31 (Vote by Board of Selectmen*
3. C i $ - |s - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - Is e ] -

Rental $ - $ -

Repair and Maint $ 300.00 | $ 3300] 8 333.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Purchase/Depreciati $ - |s & - |8 -
5. Supplies: $ - $ ‘ - $ -

Educational $ - s - | -

Lab $ - |s - $ -

Pharmacy $ - |8 ’ - $ -

Medical $ - s i - Is -

Office $ 600.00 | $ 66.00 | $ 666.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
6. Travel $ 3,630.00 | $ : 399.30 | $ 4,029.30 [Vote by Board of Selectmen*
7._Occupancy $ - s - |s - -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ -

Telephone i $ 1,000.00 | § 110.00 | § 1,110.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Postage ) $ 200.00 | $ 22,00 % 222.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Subscriptions $ - $ -

Audit and Legal $ o £ i - | -

Insurance $ 750.00 | § i 8250 $ 832.50 |Vote by Board of Sel *

Board Exp $ 45794 | $ ‘ 5037 | $ 508.31 |Vote by Board of Sel *
9. Software $ 250.00 | $ 2750 | § 277.50 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
10. Marketing/C icati $ \ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 300.00 |.$ 33.00| § 333.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
12. Sub Medical Reserve Corps $ s50000|s | b 505.00 | § 6,105.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
13. Subcontract- Sub Mi Prevention $ 65,380.00 » . $ 65,380.00

9; 1,45

* Board of Selectmen vote to charge 11% indirect rate on the preparedness funds. This progr:am! is implemented directly by employees of the Town of Exeter.

The substance misuse prevention services will be i ted by a

actor so no indi:re( t is being charged to this agreement.
Py




Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Town of Exeter

Budget Request for: Regional Public hearlth Network Services
{Name of RFP)
{
Budget Period: July 1, 2014 to.June 30, 2015

ementa

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 54,870.42 | $ : 6,035.75 | $ 60,906.17 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
2. Employee Benefits $ 10,974.02 | $ 1,207.14 | $ 12,181.16 | Vote by Board of Selectmen*
3. C I $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - 18 -

Rental $ - $ - $ -

Repair and Mai $ 200001 % 22001 % 222 .00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - 18 -
5. _Supplies: $ - $ - $ -

Educational $ - $ ) - $ -

Lab $ - |s - s -

Pharmacy $ - $ " - $ -

Medical $ - $ - $ -

Office $ 40000 | § i 4400 |5 - 444.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
6. Travel $ 3,630.00 | $ 399.30 | $ 4,029.30 [Vote by Board of Selectmen*
7. _Occupancy $ - $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -

Telephone $ 1,000.00 | $ 11000 | $ 1,110.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Postage $ 100001 § 11001 $ 111.00 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Subscriptions $ } - $ -

Audit and Legal $ - $ ] - $ -

Insurance $ 750.00 | § 8250 | $ 832.50 [Vote by Board of Selectmen*

Board Expenses $ 456.00 $ 49.50 | $ 499.50 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
9. Software $ 25000 | § 27.50 | $ 277.50 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
10._Marketing/Communications ] - $ - $ -
11, Staff Education and Training $ 300.00 | $ 33.00] % 333.00 [Vote by Board of Selectmen*
12. Subcontract-Medical Reserve Corps $ 4,617.00 | $ 50787 |8 5,124.87 |Vote by Board of Selectmen*
13, Subcontract- Substance Misuse Preven| $ 65,380.00 $ 65,380.00

* Board of Selectmen vote to charge 11% indirect rate on the preparedness funds. This péogram is implemented directly by employees of the Town of Exeter.

The substance misuse prevention services will be implemented by a subcontractor so no md:rect is being charged to this agreement.




